
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                  (DECEMBER 5) (Week 48 of 2023) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                      
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held December 5, 2023, 
at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 
3:00 p.m.     Joint Closed Session with LEC Authority {Iowa Code Section 21.5 (1) (c)} – First Floor  

                     Boardroom 

 

4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the November 28, 2023 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                         Approval of resolution approving petition for suspension of taxes through the redemption process   

                         for D.T. 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                    5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

             a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 
             b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

 

                    6.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                         a.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894715351003 in the amount of $2,371.00 

                         b.  Approval of resolution for tax abatement for Lake Forest MHC LLC 

                         c.  Approval of resolution for tax abatement for Yes Communities 

                         d.  Approval of resolution for tax abatement for V.R. 

                       

 End Consent Agenda 

  

                    7.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                         Approve the selection of HNTB for preparation of RURAL and INFRA grant                   Action 

                         applications and to direct the county engineer to negotiate a contract for 

                         Board approval 

 

                    8.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 

                         a.  Accept the resignation of Jeremy Taylor as Vice-Chairperson for the                           Action 

                              remainder of the 2023 session 

                         b.  Appoint Mark Nelson as Vice-Chairperson replacement for the remainder                   Action 

                             of the 2023 session 

 

                    9.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung & Daniel Bittinger 

                         Public response to resolution submitted to the board by the County Auditor              Information 

                         during citizen concerns of the November 28th meeting 

 

                  10.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 

                         Approval to set a roundtable meeting with Iowa’s regional legislators for                           Action 

                         December 15th at 3:30 p.m. 

 

                  11.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                 Information 

    

                  12.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                         Information  

 

                  13.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information   

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                      

                                                              
                                                           

MON., DEC. 4       6:00 p.m.      Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom  
 
WED., DEC. 6     10:00 a.m.      Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Committee Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa  
 
                            11:00 a.m.      Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting  
 
                              1:00 p.m.      Loess Hills Alliance Full Board Meeting 
 
                              4:45 p.m.      Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  
 
 WED., DEC. 13    7:30 a.m.       SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee Meeting - Hybrid 
 
                              8:05 a.m.      Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                            12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                             
 
THU., DEC. 14    12:00 p.m.      SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St. 
                              
                              4:00 p.m.     Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 
FRI., DEC. 15      12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 
 

WED., DEC. 20   12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
THU., DEC. 21      1:30 p.m.     SIMPCO Community & Economic Development, Hybrid      
    
                              4:30 p.m.     Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue            
                                                               
WED., DEC. 27     2:30 p.m.    Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., DEC. 28    11:00 a.m.    Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122 Pierce  
                                                                                                
WED., JAN. 3       4:45 p.m.    Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.   
                                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



NOVEMBER 28, 2023, FORTY-EIGHTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, November 28, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Nelson, Ung, 
Bittinger II, Radig, and Taylor.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis Butler, 
Finance and Budget Director, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, and Michelle Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the 
Board. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the agenda for November 28, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
   
 Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the November 21, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed.    
 
3. To approve the claims totaling $520,811.44.  Copy filed. 
 
4a.  To approve the separation of Easton Voigt, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-06-23. Resignation.; the 

reclassification of Michelle Mann, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-11-23, $32.12/hour, 
11.5%=$3.35/hour. Per CWA Civilian Officers Contract agreement, from Senior Class to Master Class; the 
reclassification of Daniel Priestley, Zoning Coordinator, Community and Economic Development Dept., effective 
12-11-23, $2762.66/bi-weekly, 6.5%=$168.61/bi-weekly.  Per Wage Plan Matrix, 6 year salary increase.; the 
reclassification of Juan De La Roca Sis, P/T Youth Worker, Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 12-11-23, 
$22.26/hour, 4%=$.85/hour.  Per AFSCME Juvenile Detention Contract agreement, from Grade 1/Step 1 to Grade 
1/Step 2.; and the reclassification of Marquesha Farris, P/T Youth Worker, Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 12-
11-23, $22.26/hour, 4%=$.85/hr.  Per AFSCME Juvenile Detention Contract agreement, from Grade 1/Step 1 to 
Grade 1/Step 2. Copy filed. 

 
4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, 

County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.97/hour.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0.   
 
5. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive for signatures a Resolution Proclamation Shop Rural Weekend in 

Woodbury County, Iowa.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Melissa Nelson, Correctionville, Marissa Molland, Moville, Kari Cassens, Moville, and Steve Maxwell, Moville, 

addressed the board regarding the proclamation.  
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,683 

PROCLAMATION 
SHOP RURAL WEEKEND IN WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, the vibrant communities of Woodbury County, Iowa, are enriched by the unique character and 
contributions of our local businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the heart of our county lies in the rural landscapes that showcase the resilience, craftsmanship, and 
entrepreneurship of our dedicated community members; and 
 
WHEREAS, recognizing the importance of supporting our local economy, we celebrate the diverse array of 
businesses that define the rural charm of Woodbury County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the spirit of community thrives when we come together to uplift and sustain the businesses that form a 
major component of our county's economic vitality; and 
 
WHEREAS, by promoting and participating in local commerce, we foster a sense of pride, camaraderie, and 



November 28, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

prosperity that resonates throughout Woodbury County; and 
 
WHEREAS, we acknowledge the Shop Rural Weekend as an opportunity for residents and visitors alike to explore 
the treasures of our local shops, markets, and establishments; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, on behalf of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors and the citizens of Woodbury County, I 
do hereby proclaim December 1-3, 2023 as "Shop Rural Weekend." I encourage all residents to embrace this 
occasion by patronizing the businesses that contribute to the unique character and economic strength of our 
county. 

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6. Motion by Taylor second by Nelson to approve up to $6,000.00 from CIP funds to improve the configuration and 

technology of the Auditor’s Conference Room to be paid from gaming.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
7. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve memo to all elected officials and department heads to hold the line 

on operating budgets requests at 0 percent for FY25.  Carried 5-0. 
 
8.  Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
9. Leo Jochum, Salix, Kevin Nelson, Salix Mayor, and Doyle Turner, 2738th 200th St, addressed the board regarding 

concerns about the proposed Salix Drainage District.    
 

Pat Gill, County Auditor, presented a proposed resolution to the board to request the Iowa Attorney General to 
investigate election activities and if warranted file a petition for removal of Jeremy Taylor from the office of 
Woodbury County Supervisor. 

 
Motion by Ung second by Radig to receive a copy of the proposed resolution from Auditor Gill. Carried 4-0, Taylor 
abstained. Copy filed.   

  
Doyle Turner, 2738 200th St, and Craig Levine, Sioux City, addressed the board regarding Jeremy Taylor.  

 
10. Board concerns were heard. 
  

Jim Fisher, Moville mayor, addressed the board regarding the Moville frontage road.  
 
 The Board adjourned the regular meeting until December 5, 2023. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 























































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11/29/2023 12/5/2023

Chairman Matthew Ung

✔

Accept the resignation of Jeremy Taylor as Vice-Chair for the remainder of the 2023 session, and appoint 
Mark Nelson as Vice-Chair for the remainder of the 2023 session

Vice-Chair Jeremy Taylor stated during the November 28 meeting that he would resign from his appointment 
as Vice-Chair if that was desired by a majority of the board, and the board gave consensus.

I do not anticipate that the Vice-Chair will need to preside over any of the three remaining board meetings 
during the 2023 session (Dec. 5, 12, and 19).

n/a

n/a 

a) Accept the resignation of Jeremy Taylor as Vice-Chairperson for the remainder of the 2023 session 
b) Appoint Mark Nelson as Vice-Chairperson replacement for the remainder of the 2023 session



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11/30/2023 12/5/2023

Supervisors Matthew Ung & Daniel Bittinger II

✔ ✔

Public response to resolution submitted to the board by the County Auditor during citizen concerns of the 
November 28 meeting

The Iowa Attorney General, Woodbury County Attorney, or five registered voters of Woodbury County can 
petition the court for removal of Jeremy Taylor without any prompting or action from anyone else.

Attached: 
1) "A RESOLUTION CALLING UPON THE IOWA ATTORNEY GENERAL TO FULLY INVESTIGATE THE ACTIVITIES 
OF WOODBURY COUNTY SUPERVISOR JEREMY TAYLOR AND HIS WIFE KIM PHOUNG TAYLOR..." 
2) Iowa Code Chapter 66

"66.4 Bond for costs. If the petition for removal is filed by anyone other than the attorney general or the county 
attorney, the court shall require the petitioners to file a bond in such amount and with such surety or sureties as the 
court may require, said bond to be approved by the clerk, to cover the costs..."

Like I said last Tuesday, the board majority has already provided public comment which is just as good as a 
proclamation at a board meeting. The conviction of Supervisor Taylor's wife is a national news story, and one 
of the largest cases of its kind in the country. The public is well aware of the board's position, and we will not 
stand in the way of any legal investigation(s).

Using the same logic, no person writing a letter to the editor calling for Supervisor Taylor to be held 
accountable needs the board of supervisors to vote to "endorse" it just so they can put in their letter that we 
endorse it. The board has already spoken, now is the time for the public to use their own voice and speak on 
their own behalf.





1 REMOVAL FROM OFFICE, §66.2

CHAPTER 66
REMOVAL FROM OFFICE

Referred to in §2C.5, 2C.20, 68B.32D, 123.5, 123.13, 307A.8, 331.322, 331.756(75)

See also chapter 69

66.1 Definitions.
66.1A Removal by court.
66.2 Jurisdiction.
66.3 Who may file petition.
66.4 Bond for costs.
66.5 Petition — other pleading.
66.6 Notice.
66.7 Suspension from office.
66.8 Effect of suspension.
66.9 Salary pending charge.
66.10 Governor to direct filing.
66.11 Duty of county attorney.
66.12 Special prosecutor.
66.13 Application for outside judge.
66.14 Appointment of judge.
66.15 Order by appointed judge.

66.16 Filing order — effect.
66.17 Notice to accused.
66.18 Nature of action — when triable.
66.19 Temporary officer.
66.20 Judgment of removal.
66.21 Hearing on appeal.
66.22 Effect of appeal.
66.23 Effect of dismissal.
66.24 Want of probable cause.
66.25 Reserved.
66.26 Appointive state officers.
66.27 Subpoenas — contempt.
66.28 Witness fees.
66.29 City elective officers.
66.30 Ordinance.
66.31 County and city hospital trustees.

66.1 Definitions.
As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, “book”, “list”, “record”, or

“schedule” kept by a county auditor, assessor, treasurer, recorder, sheriff, or other county
officer means the county system as defined in section 445.1.
2000 Acts, ch 1148, §1

66.1A Removal by court.
Any appointive or elective officer, except such as may be removed only by impeachment,

holding any public office in the state or in any division or municipality thereof, may be
removed from office by the district court for any of the following reasons:
1. For willful or habitual neglect or refusal to perform the duties of the office.
2. For willful misconduct or maladministration in office.
3. For corruption.
4. For extortion.
5. Upon conviction of a felony.
6. For intoxication, or upon conviction of being intoxicated.
7. Upon conviction of violating the provisions of chapter 68A.
8. For failure to pay a fine imposed pursuant to section 39A.6 and not dismissed pursuant

to chapter 17A.
[S13, §1258-c; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1091; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.1]
C2001, §66.1A
2021 Acts, ch 12, §68, 73
Referred to in §185.9, 388.3
Impeachable officers, Iowa Constitution, Art. III, §20

66.2 Jurisdiction.
The jurisdiction of the proceeding provided for in this chapter shall be as follows:
1. As to state officers whose offices are located at the seat of government, the district court

of Polk county.
2. As to state officers whose duties are confined to a district within the state, the district

court of any county within such district.
3. As to county, municipal, or other officers, the district court of the county in which such

officers’ duties are to be performed.
[C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1092; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.2]

Thu Dec 29 17:35:10 2022 Iowa Code 2023, Chapter 66 (18, 0)



§66.3, REMOVAL FROM OFFICE 2

66.3 Who may file petition.
The petition for removal may be filed:
1. By the attorney general in all cases.
2. As to state officers, by not fewer than twenty-five electors of the state.
3. As to any other officer, by five registered voters of the district, county, or municipality

where the duties of the office are to be performed.
4. As to district officers, by the county attorney of any county in the district.
5. As to all county and municipal officers, by the county attorney of the county where the

duties of the office are to be performed.
[S13, §1258-d; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1093; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.3]
2001 Acts, ch 56, §6

66.4 Bond for costs.
If the petition for removal is filed by anyone other than the attorney general or the county

attorney, the court shall require the petitioners to file a bond in such amount and with such
surety or sureties as the court may require, said bond to be approved by the clerk, to cover the
costs of such removal suit, including attorney fees, if final judgment is not entered removing
the officer charged.
[C35, §1093-e1; C39, §1093.1; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.4]
Referred to in §602.8102(20)
Presumption of approval of bond, §636.10

66.5 Petition — other pleading.
The petition shall be filed in the name of the state of Iowa. The accused shall be named as

defendant, and the petition, unless filed by the attorney general, shall be verified. The petition
shall state the charges against the accused and may be amended as in ordinary actions, and
shall be filed in the office of the clerk of the district court of the county having jurisdiction.
The petition shall be deemed denied but the accused may plead thereto.
[S13, §1258-d, -e; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1094; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.5]
Amendments, R.C.P. 1.402(4), (5)

66.6 Notice.
Upon the filing of a petition, notice of such filing and of the time and place of hearing

shall be served upon the accused in the manner required for the service of notice of the
commencement of an ordinary action. Said time shall not be less than ten days nor more
than twenty days after completed service of said notice.
[S13, §1258-f; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1095; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.6]
Service of notice, chapter 617
Manner of service, R.C.P. 1.301 – 1.315

66.7 Suspension from office.
Upon presentation of the petition to the court, the court may suspend the accused from

office, if in its judgment sufficient cause appear from the petition and affidavits which may
be presented in support of the charges contained therein.
[S13, §1258-g; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1096; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.7]
Referred to in §39A.6

66.8 Effect of suspension.
In case of suspension, the order shall be served upon the officer in question and it shall be

unlawful for the officer to exercise or attempt to exercise any of the functions of that office
until such suspension is revoked.
[C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1097; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.8]
Referred to in §39A.6

66.9 Salary pending charge.
An order of the district court suspending a public officer from the exercise of the office,

after the filing of a petition for the removal from office of such officer, shall, from the date of

Thu Dec 29 17:35:10 2022 Iowa Code 2023, Chapter 66 (18, 0)



3 REMOVAL FROM OFFICE, §66.16

such order, automatically suspend the further payment to said officer of all official salary or
compensation until said petition has been dismissed, or until said officer has been acquitted
on any pending indictments charging misconduct in office.
[C35, §1097-e1; C39, §1097.1; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.9]

66.10 Governor to direct filing.
The governor shall direct the attorney general to file a petition for removal against any

public officer whenever the governor has reasonable grounds for such direction. The attorney
general shall comply with such direction and prosecute the action.
[S13, §1258-d, -e; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1098; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.10]
2019 Acts, ch 59, §27
Referred to in §66.11

66.11 Duty of county attorney.
The county attorney of any county in which an action is instituted under section 66.10 shall,

at the request of the attorney general, appear and assist in the prosecution of such action. In
all other cases instituted in that county, the county attorney shall appear and prosecute when
the officer sought to be removed is other than that county attorney.
[S13, §1258-d; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1099; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.11]
Referred to in §331.756(15)

66.12 Special prosecutor.
When the proceeding is brought to remove the county attorney, the court may appoint an

attorney to appear in behalf of the state and prosecute such proceedings.
[S13, §1258-d; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1100; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.12]

66.13 Application for outside judge.
At any time not less than five days prior to the time the accused is required to appear, a

copy of the petition may be filed by either party in the office of the clerk of the supreme court,
together with an application to the supreme court for the appointment of a judge outside the
judicial district in which the trial is to be had to hear said petition.
[S13, §1258-f; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1101; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.13]

66.14 Appointment of judge.
It shall be the duty of the chief justice of the supreme court, upon the filing of said copy and

application, or in the chief justice’s absence or inability to act, any justice thereof, to forthwith
issue a written commission directing a district judge outside of such district to proceed to the
county in which the complaint was filed, and hear the same. The clerk of the supreme court
shall transmit a certified copy of said order to the clerk of the district court where the cause
is pending.
[S13, §1258-f; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1102; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.14]
Referred to in §66.15

66.15 Order by appointed judge.
Upon the receipt of a commission issued pursuant to section 66.14, the judge shall

immediately make an order fixing a time and place of hearing in the county in which the
petition is filed. The hearing date shall be not less than ten days nor more than twenty days
from the date of the order.
[S13, §1258-f; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1103; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.15]
2019 Acts, ch 59, §28
Referred to in §66.16, 66.17

66.16 Filing order — effect.
The order for hearing issued pursuant to section 66.15 shall be forwarded to the clerk of

the district court of the county in which the hearing is to be had. The time and place for

Thu Dec 29 17:35:10 2022 Iowa Code 2023, Chapter 66 (18, 0)



§66.16, REMOVAL FROM OFFICE 4

the hearing specified in the order shall supersede the time and place specified in any notice
already served.
[S13, §1258-f; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1104; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.16]
2019 Acts, ch 59, §29

66.17 Notice to accused.
The clerk shall file the order issued pursuant to section 66.15, and forthwith give the

defendant, by mail, notice of the time and place of hearing.
[S13, §1258-f; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1105; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.17]
2019 Acts, ch 59, §30
Referred to in §602.8102(20)

66.18 Nature of action — when triable.
The proceeding shall be summary in its nature and shall be triable as an equitable action.
[S13, §1258-g; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1106; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.18]
Trial of equitable action, chapter 624

66.19 Temporary officer.
Upon a suspension, the board or person authorized to fill a vacancy in the office shall

temporarily fill the office by appointment. In case of a suspension of a sheriff, the district
court may designate an acting sheriff until a temporary sheriff is appointed. Orders of
suspension and temporary appointment of county and township officers shall be certified to
the county auditor for entry in the election book; those of city officers, certified to the clerk
and entered upon the records; in case of other officers, to the person or body making the
original appointment.
[C51, §404, 407, 410; R60, §635, 638, 641; C73, §752, 753, 758; C97, §1257; S13, §1258-g;

C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1107; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.19]
83 Acts, ch 186, §10032
Referred to in §331.322, 331.505, 331.651

66.20 Judgment of removal.
Judgment of removal, if rendered, shall be entered of record, and the vacancy forthwith

filled as provided by law.
[S13, §1258-h; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1108; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.20]
Vacancies in office, chapter 69

66.21 Hearing on appeal.
In case of appeal, the supreme court shall fix the time of hearing and the filing of abstracts

and arguments, and said cause shall be advanced and take precedence over all other causes
upon the court calendar, and shall be heard at the next term after the appeal is taken, provided
the abstract and arguments are filed in said court in time for said action to be heard.
[S13, §1258-i; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1109; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.21]

66.22 Effect of appeal.
The taking of an appeal by the defendant and the filing of a supersedeas bond shall not

operate to stay the proceedings of the district court, or restore said defendant to office pending
such appeal.
[S13, §1258-i; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1110; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.22]

66.23 Effect of dismissal.
If the petition for removal is dismissed, the defendant shall be reimbursed for the

reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the defendant in making a defense, including
reasonable attorney’s fees, as determined by the court. If the petition for removal is filed by
the attorney general, the state shall pay the expenses. If the petition for removal is filed by the
county attorney or special prosecutor, the expenses shall be paid by the political subdivision
of the state represented by the county attorney or special prosecutor. The payment shall be

Thu Dec 29 17:35:10 2022 Iowa Code 2023, Chapter 66 (18, 0)



5 REMOVAL FROM OFFICE, §66.29

made out of any funds in the state treasury not otherwise appropriated, or out of the county
treasury, or the general fund of the city or other subdivision of the state, as the case may be.
[S13, §1258-i; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1111; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.23]
83 Acts, ch 123, §47, 209

66.24 Want of probable cause.
If the action is instituted upon complaint of citizens, and it appears to the court that there

was no reasonable cause for filing the complaint, such expense may be taxed as costs against
the complaining parties.
[S13, §1258-i; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1112; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.24]

66.25 Reserved.

66.26 Appointive state officers.
Any appointive state officer may also be removed from office by a majority vote of the

executive council for any of the following causes:
1. Habitual or willful neglect of duty.
2. Any disability preventing a proper discharge of the duties of the office.
3. Gross partiality.
4. Oppression.
5. Extortion.
6. Corruption.
7. Willful misconduct or maladministration in office.
8. Conviction of felony.
9. A failure to produce and fully account for all public funds and property in the officer’s

hands at any inspection or settlement.
10. Becoming ineligible to hold the office.
[S13, §1258-b; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1114; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81,

§66.26]
Referred to in §46.5

66.27 Subpoenas — contempt.
The executive council, in any investigation held by it, may issue subpoenas for witnesses

and for the production of records, books, papers, and other evidence. If a witness, duly
subpoenaed, refuses to appear, or refuses to testify, or otherwise refuses to comply with said
subpoena, such fact shall be certified by such council to the district court or judge of the
county where the hearing is being held and said court or judge shall proceed with said refusal
as though the same had occurred in a legal proceeding before said court or judge.
[C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1115; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.27]
Contempts, chapter 665

66.28 Witness fees.
Witnesses, if in the employ of the state, shall not be entitled to any witness fees, but shall

receive the mileage allowed witnesses in the district court. Other witnesses shall receive the
fees and mileage allowed witnesses in district court. A sum sufficient to pay the fees and
mileage is appropriated out of any unappropriated funds in the state treasury.
[C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1116; C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.28]
2019 Acts, ch 24, §12
Witness fees, §622.69 – 622.75

66.29 City elective officers.
Any city officer elected by the people may be removed from office, after hearing on written

charges filed with the council of such city for any cause which would be ground for an

Thu Dec 29 17:35:10 2022 Iowa Code 2023, Chapter 66 (18, 0)



§66.29, REMOVAL FROM OFFICE 6

equitable action for removal in the district court, but such removal can only be made by a
two-thirds vote of the entire council.
[R60, §1087; C73, §516; C97, §1258; SS15, §1258; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1117; C46, 50, 54,

58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.29]
Referred to in §66.30
Removal of municipal officers, §66.1A, 372.15

66.30 Ordinance.
The council may, by ordinance, provide as to the manner of preferring and hearing charges

filed pursuant to section 66.29. A person shall not be removed twice by the council from
the same office for the same offense. Proceedings before the council shall not be a bar to
proceedings in the district court as provided in this chapter.
[R60, §1087; C73, §516; C97, §1258; S13, §1258-a; SS15, §1258; C24, 27, 31, 35, 39, §1118;

C46, 50, 54, 58, 62, 66, 71, 73, 75, 77, 79, 81, §66.30]
2019 Acts, ch 59, §31

66.31 County and city hospital trustees.
A county or city hospital board of trusteesmay include in their bylaws a process for removal

of a trustee for which there is cause that would be grounds for an equitable action for removal
in the district court. The process shall provide for a hearing on written charges filed with the
board of trustees.
2018 Acts, ch 1033, §1
Removal from office, §66.1A

Thu Dec 29 17:35:10 2022 Iowa Code 2023, Chapter 66 (18, 0)



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/1/2023 12/05/2023

Chairman Matthew Ung

✔

Approval to set a roundtable meeting with Iowa's regional legislators

While the media and public are encouraged to attend, the purpose and focus of this roundtable with county 
supervisors and state legislators is for local and state policymakers to dialogue.

With the 2024 legislative session approaching, our state legislators would benefit from hearing how our 
counties budget and function to provide essential services to our shared constituents. It would also benefit our 
supervisors to receive pertinent updates and have the opportunity to answer any questions from state 
legislators in a collaborative setting.

I will coordinate with department heads such as the county engineer, finance director, and potentially others in 
presenting concise legislative requests. In advance of the roundtable, we should also discuss ideas from board 
members and agree on a few priority items to list on an agenda.

Prior to the roundtable, the Woodbury County Board will publish an agenda of topics which will include time for 
legislative updates. The meeting will be recorded by Woodbury County and made available. 

Set a public roundtable meeting in the basement boardroom of the Woodbury County Courthouse for 
December 15 at 3:30pm, and invite Iowa's area legislators and supervisors to attend the roundtable hosted by 
the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors.


	Insert from: "2023-12-05 (Public Response to Resolution to Iowa AG) (003).pdf"
	2023-12-05 (Public Response to Resolution to Iowa AG)
	01-31 (Nature Center)
	01-24 (CF Revenues)
	Item 1 (1-3-23)
	Agenda Form (1-page)




	Scan_0001
	66

	Insert from: "2023-12-05 (Vice-Chair Replacement).pdf"
	01-31 (Nature Center)
	01-24 (CF Revenues)
	Item 1 (1-3-23)
	Agenda Form (1-page)



	20230126151051732

	Insert from: "12-05 (Roundtable).pdf"
	01-24 (CF Revenues)
	Item 1 (1-3-23)
	Agenda Form (1-page)

	Resolution

	CF Abatement Schedule

	Insert from: "11-28-23 Regular Mtg.pdf"
	The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, November 28, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Nelson, Ung, Bittinger II, Radig, and Taylor.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis Butler, Finance and Budg...
	The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.
	1. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the agenda for November 28, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the following items by consent:
	2. To approve minutes of the November 21, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed.
	3. To approve the claims totaling $520,811.44.  Copy filed.
	4a.  To approve the separation of Easton Voigt, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-06-23. Resignation.; the reclassification of Michelle Mann, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-11-23, $32.12/hour, 11.5%=$3.35/hour. P...
	4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.97/hour.  Copy filed.
	Carried 5-0.
	5. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive for signatures a Resolution Proclamation Shop Rural Weekend in Woodbury County, Iowa.  Carried 5-0.
	Melissa Nelson, Correctionville, Marissa Molland, Moville, Kari Cassens, Moville, and Steve Maxwell, Moville, addressed the board regarding the proclamation.
	WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
	RESOLUTION #13,683
	PROCLAMATION
	SHOP RURAL WEEKEND IN WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
	WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
	Copy filed.
	6. Motion by Taylor second by Nelson to approve up to $6,000.00 from CIP funds to improve the configuration and technology of the Auditor’s Conference Room to be paid from gaming.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	7. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve memo to all elected officials and department heads to hold the line on operating budgets requests at 0 percent for FY25.  Carried 5-0.
	8.  Reports on committee meetings were heard.
	9. Leo Jochum, Salix, Kevin Nelson, Salix Mayor, and Doyle Turner, 2738th 200th St, addressed the board regarding concerns about the proposed Salix Drainage District.
	Motion by Ung second by Radig to receive a copy of the proposed resolution from Auditor Gill. Carried 4-0, Taylor abstained. Copy filed.
	Doyle Turner, 2738 200th St, and Craig Levine, Sioux City, addressed the board regarding Jeremy Taylor.
	10. Board concerns were heard.
	Jim Fisher, Moville mayor, addressed the board regarding the Moville frontage road.
	The Board adjourned the regular meeting until December 5, 2023.

	Insert from: "11-28-23 Regular Mtg.pdf"
	The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, November 28, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Nelson, Ung, Bittinger II, Radig, and Taylor.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis Butler, Finance and Budg...
	The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.
	1. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the agenda for November 28, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the following items by consent:
	2. To approve minutes of the November 21, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed.
	3. To approve the claims totaling $520,811.44.  Copy filed.
	4a.  To approve the separation of Easton Voigt, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-06-23. Resignation.; the reclassification of Michelle Mann, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-11-23, $32.12/hour, 11.5%=$3.35/hour. P...
	4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.97/hour.  Copy filed.
	Carried 5-0.
	5. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive for signatures a Resolution Proclamation Shop Rural Weekend in Woodbury County, Iowa.  Carried 5-0.
	Melissa Nelson, Correctionville, Marissa Molland, Moville, Kari Cassens, Moville, and Steve Maxwell, Moville, addressed the board regarding the proclamation.
	WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
	RESOLUTION #13,683
	PROCLAMATION
	SHOP RURAL WEEKEND IN WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
	WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
	Copy filed.
	6. Motion by Taylor second by Nelson to approve up to $6,000.00 from CIP funds to improve the configuration and technology of the Auditor’s Conference Room to be paid from gaming.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	7. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve memo to all elected officials and department heads to hold the line on operating budgets requests at 0 percent for FY25.  Carried 5-0.
	8.  Reports on committee meetings were heard.
	9. Leo Jochum, Salix, Kevin Nelson, Salix Mayor, and Doyle Turner, 2738th 200th St, addressed the board regarding concerns about the proposed Salix Drainage District.
	Motion by Ung second by Radig to receive a copy of the proposed resolution from Auditor Gill. Carried 4-0, Taylor abstained. Copy filed.
	Doyle Turner, 2738 200th St, and Craig Levine, Sioux City, addressed the board regarding Jeremy Taylor.
	10. Board concerns were heard.
	Jim Fisher, Moville mayor, addressed the board regarding the Moville frontage road.
	The Board adjourned the regular meeting until December 5, 2023.


